File Copy

5



REPORT NO. 1652

R

R 1652

BRL

1

t

i.

CROSS SECTIONS FOR FORWARD-ANGLE ELASTIC SCATTERING OF 7 TO 10 MeV NEUTRONS FROM CARBON, NITROGEN, AND OXYGEN

by

William P. Bucher Clinton E. Hollandsworth Andrus Niiler David McNatt James E. Youngblood

June 1973

Approved for public release; distribution unlimited.

USA BALLISTIC RESEARCH LABORATORIES ABERDEEN PROVING GROUND, MARYLAND Destroy this report when it is no longer needed. Do not return it to the originator.

1

Secondary distribution of this report by originating or sponsoring activity is prohibited.

Additional copies of this report may be obtained from the National Technical Information Service, U.S. Department of Commerce, Springfield, Virginia 22151.

The findings in this report are not to be construed as an official Department of the Army position, unless so designated by other authorized documents. BALLISTIC RESEARCH LABORATORIES

REPORT NO. 1652

JUNE 1973

CROSS SECTIONS FOR FORWARD-ANGLE ELASTIC SCATTERING OF 7 to 10 MeV NEUTRONS FROM CARBON, NITROGEN, AND OXYGEN

> William P. Bucher Clinton E. Hollandsworth Andrus Niiler David McNatt James E. Youngblood

Approved for public release; distribution unlimited.

This work was supported by the Defense Nuclear Agency under DNA Subtask W99QAXPC101 and in part by RDT&E Project No. 1W062117AD52

ABERDEEN PROVING GROUND, MARYLAND

REPORT NO. 1652

WPBucher/CEHollandsworth/ ANiiler/DMcNatt/JEYoungblood/rr Aberdeen Proving Ground, Md. June 1973

CROSS SECTIONS FOR FORWARD-ANGLE ELASTIC SCATTERING OF 7 TO 10 MeV NEUTRONS FROM CARBON, NITROGEN, AND OXYGEN

ABSTRACT

Absolute differential cross sections for the elastic scattering of 7.40, 7.55, 8.00, 8.55, 9.00, and 9.50 MeV neutrons from carbon, nitrogen, and oxygen in the angular range from 2.5° to 15° have been determined. Measurements were made relative to the scattering from lead by use of a special-purpose collimator. The cross section scale was then established by absolute measurements for lead in a ring geometry experiment. The results for nitrogen are consistent with recent measurements at other laboratories which suggest that the discrepancy in previous nitrogen cross section data around 7-8 MeV neutron energy arose from an underestimate of the elastic scattering cross section. The data presented in this report represent the first direct measurements of neutron scattering cross sections for light elements at very small scattering angles.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

		Page
	ABSTRACT	3
	LIST OF FIGURES	7
Ι.	INTRODUCTION	9
11.	EXPERIMENTAL PROCEDURE	9
III.	RESULTS AND DISCUSSION	12
	A. Carbon	12
	B. Nitrogen	17
	C. Oxygen	17
IV.	SUMMARY	17
	ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS	21
	REFERENCES	22
	DISTRIBUTION LIST	25

\$

.

. .

٠

•

х.

LIST OF FIGURES

Figur	e	Page
1.	Schematic Diagram of Small-Angle Collimator	. 11
2.	Forward-angle Scattering Cross Sections for Carbon	. 16
3.	Forward-angle Scattering Cross Sections for Nitrogen	. 18
4.	Forward-angle Scattering Cross Sections for Oxygen	. 19

2

3

.

•

I. INTRODUCTION

A technique, which utilizes a neutron collimator assembly designed to provide shielding along the entire path length of scattered neutrons from scatterer to detector, has been developed for measurements of the forward-angle elastic scattering of fast neutrons.

In a previous report¹^{*} we described the experimental method and presented results for scattering of 7.55 and 9.50 MeV neutrons from carbon, nitrogen, and oxygen. These experiments were motivated by the desire to provide experimental data bearing on the resolution of an existing discrepancy² in the nitrogen cross sections in the 7 to 10 MeV range of neutron energies. The results of air transport calculations³ for neutrons are sensitive to errors in the input cross sections of the magnitude and nature of those implied by the discrepancy. Our results¹ for N at 7.55 MeV indicated that the 0° cross section was approximately 40% higher than the minimum value given by the Wick limit and implied that previous measurements of the elastic scattering probably yielded an underestimate of the total cross section for elastic scattering.

The new measurements reported here were initiated primarily to provide additional data concerning the discrepancy. Since initiating the present work, new measurements at large angles $(15^{\circ} \le \theta \le 160^{\circ})$ between 7 and 10 MeV neutron energy have been reported.^{4,5} The results of these recent measurements are consistent with our results and produce integrated elastic cross sections approximately 20% higher than the earlier elastic scattering data⁶ in the 7 to 9 MeV range of neutron energies.

II. EXPERIMENTAL PROCEDURE

The measurements were carried out at the BRL tandem Van de Graaff facility. Deuterons from a direct-extraction diode source were pulsed at a repetition rate of 2 MHz and klystron bunched. The overall time resolution for the detection of elastically scattered neutrons was approximately two nanoseconds. After acceleration, the pulsed deuteron beam was used to produce neutrons through the $D(d,n)^{3}$ He reaction in a D_2 gas cell with a thin (3.5 or 5µ) Mo entrance window. The cell length was varied from 2 cm to 3.8 cm during the course of these measurements. Neutron production was monitored by observation of the neutron time-offlight spectrum in a scintillation detector positioned approximately 1.5 meters from the source.

The experimental arrangement is shown in Figure 1. A scattering run with the sample in the scattering position (see Figure 1) is followed by a background run, for the same number of monitor counts, with the sample in the attenuating position. The scattering samples are in the form of discs 26 cm in diameter. The liquid samples, N_2H_4 and H_2O are confined

* References are listed on page 22.

in thin-walled stainless steel containers. Scattered neutrons are detected in NE-213 scintillators. Standard neutron time-of-flight techniques, including neutron-gamma ray discrimination, are used for background suppression. A general description of the experimental techniques has been given in a previous report.¹

All scattering measurements with the collimator of Figure 1 are made relative to the scattering from lead. The absolute cross sections for lead are then determined by ring geometry measurements.⁷ This approach is particularly feasible due to the high scattering cross section for lead, approximately 7 barns/sr. at 3°, a factor of ten or more higher than those of carbon, nitrogen, or oxygen. The excellent counting statistics of the lead data taken with the collimator introduce only a small uncertainty in the final data.

In the ring geometry measurements, the signal to background is sufficiently high to allow good counting statistics. However, it is necessary to correct these data for systematic errors due to air scattering by performing similar measurements with polyethylene (CH_2) rings. The final data for lead are also corrected for multiple scattering and, to the second order, for the finite sizes of the source, scatterer, and detector. The angles for which measurements were made correspond closely to those measured with the collimator so that errors due to either interpolation or extrapolation are small.

The lead data at five energies (7.55, 8.00, 8.55, 9.00, and 9.50 MeV) were compared with the predictions of the Perey-Buck optical model⁸ using the equivalent local potentials given by Wilmore and Hodgson.⁹ While the agreement is found to be reasonably good, it is noted that the measured angular dependence at each energy is slightly more forward peaked than that predicted by these optical model parameters. However, the energy dependence is correct; this is verified by the fact that when the data are expressed in terms of fractional deviation from the optical model values the resulting plot is seen to be energy independent. Thus, optical model predictions can be used to correlate the data from various energies and thereby yield more accurate results than by considering the data at each energy separately. This represents an improvement in the normalization used in our previously reported¹ C, N, and O cross section data at 7.55 and 9.50 MeV, and for this reason the results are revised and included in the following tables and graphs along with the present results.

Because measurements were made for all three elements at each incident neutron energy, the energy spread frequently encompassed regions of structure in the total cross sections for one or more elements. Further, the mean neutron energy was uncertain to about 30 keV. To minimize uncertainities in the final results, an auxiliary measurement was performed; the transmission of each sample was measured under conditions identical to those of the differential scattering measurements, e.g., energy, energy spread, and same sample discs (the center channel of the



Figure 1. Schematic Diagram of Small-Angle Collimator.

님

collimator is used for this purpose).

III. RESULTS AND DISCUSSION

The results of measurements of the forward-angle elastic scattering from carbon, nitrogen, and oxygen at 7.40 \pm 0.13, 7.55 \pm 0.06, 8.00 \pm 0.12, 8.55 \pm 0.07, 9.00 \pm 0.10, and 9.50 \pm 0.05 MeV are presented in Tables I-III. The angular resolutions of the measurements were \pm 0.7, \pm 0.9, \pm 1.2, and \pm 1.5 degrees for the scattering angles 2.6, 6.6, 10.4, and 14.2 degrees, respectively. The uncertainty in the mean neutron energy is estimated to be 30 keV.

The data are corrected for multiple scattering effects¹⁰ and finite geometry effects are taken into account. The final uncertainty in the oxygen and nitrogen data was magnified by the use of compounds as scattering samples (H_2O and N_2H_4). As an independent check of these data, scattering measurements were also carried out with a CH₂ sample. The results inferred for carbon are in good statistical agreement with that obtained by the use of a graphite sample (or conversely, the correct values for the hydrogen cross section are inferred with the C and CH₂ data). Included in the assigned standard deviations, in addition to the counting statistics, are the uncertainties in the differential cross section for lead (used to normalize the data) and in the transmission of each sample averaged over the energy spread (used to infer the final results from the data).

A. Carbon

Differential cross sections for the scattering of 7.40 to 9.50 MeV neutrons from carbon are shown in Figure 2. In this figure (and in succeeding ones for other elements), the energy-averaged Wick's limit¹¹ is indicated by an arrow along the vertical axis. Total cross sections used to calculate this value were taken from ENDF/B files, and the square of the cross section was then averaged over the appropriate energy interval. In Table I this limit is given as well as the extrapolated $\sigma(0^\circ)$ as calculated from a least squares fit of the experimental data to the equation $ln\sigma(\theta) = a - m (1-\cos \theta)$, where a and m are constant. The solid curves give the prediction of ENDF/B evaluation 1165 for carbon,¹² appropriately averaged over the experimental energy spread. With the exception of the 8.55 and 9.00 MeV data, which agree well with the evaluation, the measurements are higher than the evaluated curve at all energies. As noted by Perey and Kinney,¹³ the carbon evaluation was based on rather meager experimental data. This fact coupled with the strongly resonant nature of fast neutron scattering from carbon suggest that an adequate evaluation of neutron interactions with carbon cannot be expected without several additional experimental measurements.

Our measurements at 7.55 and at 7.40 MeV are in excellent agreement with results ORNL for 7.54 ± 0.06 MeV at large angles. The measured cross

θ	$\frac{7.40 \pm 0.13}{\sigma}$ (mb/sr)	\$ error	θ	$\frac{7.55 \pm 0.06}{\sigma}$	\$ error
C.R .	C.m. \		с.т.	C.M. \	
2.9°	668	7	2.8°	690	8
7.4°	641	5	7.2°	604	5
11.3°	583	4	11.7°	596	4
15.4°	518	Å	15.4°	534	Å
	010	•	101 (•
σ(0°) ^a	678		σ(0°)	658	
₩ _L ^b	545		WL	559	
$\sigma(0^{\circ})/W_{L}$	1.24		σ(0°)/W _L	1.18	
	8 00 + 0 12			8 55 + 0 07	
A	$\frac{0.00 \pm 0.12}{\sigma}$	t error	A	$\frac{0.05 \pm 0.07}{\sigma}$	* error
č.m.	C.m. (110/31)	1.01101	č.m.	C.m. (20/31)	V CIIOI
2 9°	998	8	2 9°	36.0	8
7 4°	880	5	7.4°	396	5
11 79	821	5	11 4	320	5
15 39	756	J A	15 49	302	J A
15.5	/ 50	4	15.4	302	4
σ(0°)	953		σ(0°)	393	
WL	688		WL	244	
σ(0°)/W _L	1.39		$\sigma(0^{\circ})/W_{L}$	1.61	
	9.00 ± 0.10			9.50 ± 0.05	
^θ ć.m.	$\sigma_{\rm c.m.}$ (mb/sr)	% error	^θ c.m.	σ _{c.m.} (mb/sr)	% error
2 Q°	225	7	2 8°	156	7
7 4 9	220	, F	7 70	430	, c
11 40	711	5	11 79	440	3
11.4	311	5		414	4
15.4	209	4	15.4	354	4
σ(0°)	347		σ(0°)	475	
W _L	288		₩ _L	374	
σ(0°)/W _L	1.20		σ(0°)/W _L	1.27	

Table I. Cross Sections for Forward-Angle Scattering From Carbon.

^aZero degree differential cross section determined by extrapolation of experimental data.

^bMinimum value of zero degree cross section determined from Wick's Limit.

θ c.m.	$\frac{7.40 \pm 0.13}{\sigma_{\text{c.m.}}}$ (mb/sr)	* error	ө с.в.	$\frac{7.55 \pm 0.06}{\sigma_{\text{c.m.}} \text{(mb/sr)}}$	% error
2.9 [•]	545	13	2.8	575	14
7.3	507	9	7.1 [•]	526	11
11.1	492	6	11.6	538	8
15.2	433	8	15.2	402	7
σ(0°) ^a	546		σ(0°)	609	
₩ _L b	486		WL	426	
∉(0 [•])/ [₩] L	1.12		$\sigma(0^{\bullet})/W_{L}$	1.43	
	8.00 ± 0.12			8.55 ± 0.07	
θ с. m.	σ (mab/sr) c.m.	\$ error	Ө с.ш.	σ (mb/sr) c.m.	% error
2.9°	606	12	2.9°	438	13
7.3°	526	9	7.3°	388	10
11.6°	458	8	11.2°	358	8
15.1°	389	8	15.2°	313	9
σ(0°)	594		σ(0°)	427	
WL	444		W _L	360	
$\sigma(0^{\circ})/W_{L}$	1.34		σ(0°)/ ^W L	1.19	
^θ c.m.	$\frac{9.00 \pm 0.10}{\sigma_{c.m.}}$ (mb/sr)	4 error	θ c.m.	$\frac{9.50 \pm 0.05}{\sigma_{\text{c.m.}} \text{(mb/sr)}}$	\$ error
2.9°	413	13	2.8°	476	10
7.3°	398	10	7.1 [•]	401	10
11.2°	335	8	11.6°	418	7
15.2 [•]	262	9	15.2°	378	8
σ(0°)	436		σ(0°)	455	
W _L	382		WL	414	
σ(0°)/ ^W L	1.14		σ(0°)/ ^W L	1.10	

Table II. Cross Sections for Forward-Angle Scattering from Nitrogen.

^aZero degree differential cross section determined by extrapolation of experimental data.

^bMinimum value of zero degree cross section determined from Wick's Limit.

θ c.m.	$\frac{7.40 \pm 0.13}{\sigma_{\text{c.m.}} \text{(mb/sr)}}$	\$ error	θ c.m.	$\frac{7.55 \pm 0.06}{\sigma_{c.m.} (mb/sr)}$	* error
2 8 °	262	22	2 00	705	16
2.0 7.3 ⁰	202	22	2.0	325	10
/.2	209	14		2/1	14
	295	11	11.5	249	14
15.1	248	11	15.1	164	14
σ(0 [●]) ^a	299		σ(0°)	331	
₩ _L b	328		WL	258	
σ(0°)/ ^W L	0.91		σ(0°)/ ^W L	1.28	
	8.00 ± 0.12			8.55 ± 0.07	
θ с. m.	σ.m. (mb/sr)	% error	θ с.	σ.m.(mb/sr)	% error
2.8°	317	18	2.8°	246	21
7.2°	252	15	7.2°	314	12
11.4°	239	13	11.2°	231	12
14.9°	164	15	15.1°	241	10
		10	1011		10
σ(0°)	315		σ(0°)	29 0	
WL	195		WL	278	
σ(0°)/ ^W L	1.62		σ(0°)/ ^W L	1.04	
	9.00 ± 0.10			9.50 ± 0.05	
^θ c.m.	σ _{c.m.} (mb/sr)	% error	θ c.m .	σ _{c.m.} (mb/sr)	% error
2.8°	344	15	2.8°	375	13
7.2°	328	11	7.0°	348	11
11.2°	332	8	11.5°	309	9
15.1°	218	10	15.1°	249	11
σ(0°)	388		σ(0°)	384	
WL	360		WL	385	
σ(0°)/ ^W L	1.08		σ(0°)/ ^W L	1.00	

^aZero degree differential cross section determined by extrapolation of experimental data.

^bMinimum value of zero degree cross section determined from Wick's Limit.



Figure 2. Forward-angle Scattering Cross Sections for Carbon.

sections for 15° scattering at 7.54 and 7.55 MeV agree within 4%. Our 8.55 MeV results for carbon are somewhat lower than the ORNL data at 8.56 MeV; however, in general we obtain results consistent with those of Perey and Kinney (see succeeding discussions).

B. Nitrogen

Our nitrogen results are shown in Figure 3. The solid curves were computed from the recent evaluation of nitrogen data by Young and Foster, ENDF/B MAT 1133.¹⁴ The evaluation is in good agreement with our measurements around 7 and 8 MeV; whereas, the evaluated curve tends to be slightly higher than the measured one for the higher energies. Our results at 7.55 (and at 7.40) join smoothly with the large-angle data of Perey and Kinney.¹⁵

C. Oxygen

Differential cross sections for forward-angle scattering of 7 to 10 MeV neutrons from oxygen are compared with the Young and Foster evaluation¹⁶ of oxygen data (MAT 1134) in Figure 4. The data are well described by the evaluation except for the 9.50 MeV data which are somewhat lower than the evaluated curve. Our measurements near 15° at 7.55 and 8.55 are consistent with the measurements of Kinney and Perey¹⁷ at 7.54 and 8.56 for approximately the same energy spreads.

IV. SUMMARY

The data presented in this report represent the first direct measurements of neutron cross sections for scattering from light elements at very small angles. These results are of special importance in the case of nitrogen because of the discrepancy in the nitrogen cross sections discussed in Ref. 2. Briefly stated, the elastic scattering cross section obtained by subtracting the measured nonelastic cross sections from the total was approximately 200 mb higher than the elastic cross section obtained by direct measurement.⁶

In their evaluation, ¹⁴ Young and Foster assigned the 200 mb of cross section to the elastic scattering cross section. Their choice was influenced in part by our previous measurements¹ of small-angle scattering which indicated that the differential cross section at zero degrees exceeded Wick's limit by about 40% around 7-8 MeV. The data of Bauer, et al.⁶ would not predict forward cross sections in excess of Wick's limit. A second consideration was that the assignment of the 200 mb to the elastic cross section assumed that only one measurement was in error, that of Bauer et al. Conversely, the assignment of this 200 mb contribution to the nonelastic cross section would have implied that several independent measurements of the nonelastic cross section were in error. Our results at small angles and the large-angle data from ORNL



Figure 3. Forward-angle Scattering Cross Sections for Nitrogen.



Figure 4. Forward-angle Scattering Cross Sections for Oxygen.

and TNC tend to confirm the choice made by Young and Foster in their evaluation. Furthermore, the results presented here demonstrate that, even with energy resolutions typical of those used in elastic scattering measurements, the zero degree cross sections for light elements appreciably exceed, in some instances, the value given by an energy-averaged Wick's limit. (See Reference 1 for discussion of energy averaging of Wick's inequality.)

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

We wish to thank L. Stewart, P. Young, and D. G. Foster, Jr. for several helpful discussions. In addition, we gratefully acknowledge the contributions of R. Juckens, W. B. Beverly, and J. A. Morrissey to this work.

REFERENCES

- W. P. Bucher, C. E. Hollandsworth, R. D. Lamoreaux, A. Niiler, R. R. Sankey, and D. Eccleshall, <u>Small-Angle Elastic Scattering of</u> <u>7.55 and 9.50 MeV Neutrons From C, N, and O.</u> BRL Report No. 1562, <u>1971.</u> (AD #734877)
- J. K. Dickens and F. G. Perey, "The ¹⁴N (n,xγ) Reaction for 5.8 ≤ E_n ≤ 8.6 MeV", Nucl. Sci. Eng. <u>36</u>, 280 (1969).
- 3. Norman E. Banks, <u>Neutron Cross Section Sensitivity Studies For</u> Oxygen, Nitrogen, and Dry Air. BRL Report No. 1583, 1972. (AD #901087)
- F. G. Perey and W. E. Kinney, "On A Possible Resolution of the Nitrogen Nonelastic Neutron Cross Section Discrepancy Below 9 MeV", Nucl. Sci. Eng. 46, 428 (1971).
- 5. D. O. Nellis and P. S. Buchanan, <u>Neutron Scattering and Gamma-Ray</u> <u>Production Cross Sections for N, O, Al, Si, Ca, and Fe</u>". DNA 2716, 1972.
- P. W. Bauer, J. D. Anderson, H. F. Lutz, C. Wong, J. W. McClure and B. A. Pohl, "Elastic Scattering of 7 to 14 MeV Neutrons from Nitrogen", Nucl. Phys. <u>A93</u>, 673 (1967).
- 7. W. P. Bucher, C. E. Hollandsworth, and A. Niiler, BRL Report (to be published).
- 8. F. Perey and B. Buck, "A Non-local Potential Model For the Scattering of Neutrons by Nuclei", Nucl. Phys. <u>32</u>, 353 (1962).
- 9. D. Wilmore and P. E. Hodgson, "The Calculation of Neutron Cross Sections from Optical Potentials", Nucl. Phys. 55, 673 (1964).
- 10. W. Beverly, Muse: <u>A Multiple Scattering Effect Code for Infinite</u>, Slabs, BRL Report No. 1588, 1972. (AD #903008L)
- 11. G. C. Wick, Atti Acad. d'Itac. 13, 1203 (1943).
- E. L. Slaggie and J. T. Reynolds, C¹² Fast Neutron Cross Sections and Legendre Moments Below 15 MeV, Knolls Atomic Power Laboratory Report KAPL 3099, 1966; See also, J. T. Reynolds, C. J. Slavik, C. R. Lubitz, and N. C. Francis, "Coupled-Channel Calculation of C¹² Neutron Scattering", Phys. Rev. 176, 1213 (1968).
- 13. F. G. Perey and W. E. Kinney, <u>Carbon Neutron Elastic and Inelastic</u> Scattering Cross Section from 4.5 to 8.5 MeV, Oak Ridge National Laboratory Report, ORNL-4441, 1969.

- 14. P. G. Young and D. G. Foster, Jr., <u>An Evaluation of the Neutron and Gamma-Ray Production Cross Sections for Nitrogen</u>, Los Alamos Scientific Laboratory Report, LA-4725, 1972.
- 15. F. G. Perey and W. E. Kinney, Private Communication, 1972.
- 16. D. G. Foster, Jr. and P. G. Young, <u>A Preliminary Evaluation of</u> the Neutron Cross Section of Oxygen, Los Alamos Scientific Laboratory Report, LA 4780, 1972.
- 17. W. E. Kinney and F. G. Perey, <u>Neutron Elastic and Inelastic Scattering</u> <u>Cross Sections for Oxygen in the Energy Range 4.34 to 8.56 MeV.</u> Oak Ridge National Laboratory Report, ORNL-4780, 1972.

.

.

\$

•

DISTRIBUTION LIST

No. of Copies Organization

No. of Copies

Organization

- 12 Commander Defense Documentation Center ATTN: TIPCR Cameron Station Alexandria, Virginia 22314
 - 5 Director Defense Nuclear Agency ATTN: Tech Library (1 cy) RARP (4 cys) Washington, DC 20305
- 1 Commander U.S. Army Materiel Command ATTN: AMCDL 5001 Eisenhower Avenue Alexandria, Virginia 22304
- 1 Commander U.S. Army Materiel Command ATTN: AMCDMA, MG J.R. Guthrie 5001 Eisenhower Avenue Alexandria, Virginia 22304
- 1 Commander U.S. Army Materiel Command ATTN: AMCRD, MG S. C. Meyer 5001 Eisenhower Avenue Alexandria, Virginia 22304
- 1 Commander U.S. Army Materiel Command ATTN: AMCRD, Dr.J.V.R.Kaufman 5001 Eisenhower Avenue Alexandria, Virginia 22304
- 1 Commander U.S. Army Materiel Command ATTN: AMCRD-TE 5001 Eisenhower Avenue Alexandria, Virginia 22304

- 1 Commander U.S. Army Materiel Command ATTN: AMCRD-TP 5001 Eisenhower Avenue Alexandria, Virginia 22304
- 1 Commander U.S. Army Materiel Command ATTN: AMCRD-WN-RE 5001 Eisenhower Avenue Alexandria, Virginia 22304
- 1 Commander U.S. Army Aviation Systems Command ATTN: AMSAV-E 12th and Spruce Streets St. Louis, Missouri 63166
- 1 Director U.S. Army Air Mobility Research and Development Laboratory Ames Research Center Moffett Field, California 94035
- 2 Commander U.S. Army Electronics Command ATTN: AMSEL-RD AMSEL-DL Fort Monmouth, New Jersey 07703
- 1 Commander U.S. Army Missile Command ATTN: AMSMI_R Redstone Arsenal, Alabama 35809
- 1 Commander U.S. Army Tank Automotive Command ATTN: AMSTA-RHFL Warren, Michigan 48090

No. of No. of Copies Organization Copies Organization 2 HQDA (DARD-MSN-N; DARD-ARP 2 Commander U.S. Army Mobility Equipment Dr. R. Watson) Research & Development Center Washington, DC 20310 ATTN: Tech Docu Cen, Bldg. 315 AMSME-RZT 1 Commander Fort Belvoir, Virginia 22060 U.S. Army Research Office (Durham) ATTN: RDRD-P, Dr. Mace 1 Commander U.S. Army Munitions Command Box CM. Duke Station ATTN: AMSMU-RE Durham, North Carolina 27706 Dover, New Jersey 07801 4 Commander US Naval Air Systems Command 2 Commander U.S. Army Weapons Command ATTN: AIR-604 (3 cys) AIR-52023, Nuc Appl Br ATTN: AMSWE-RE Washington, DC 20360 AMSWE-RDF Rock Island, Illinois 61202 4 Commander 1 Director U.S. Naval Ordnance Systems U.S. Army Advanced Materiel Command Concepts Agency ATTN: 0RD-0632 2461 Eisenhower Avenue ORD-035 Alexandria, Virginia 22314 ORD-5524 ORD-0523 2 Commander Washington, DC 20360 U.S. Army Harry Diamond Laboratories 1 Director ATTN: AMXDO-TD/002 Argonne National Laboratory AMXDO-NP ATTN: Dr. A. B. Smith Washington, DC 20438 Reactor Physics Division 9700 South Cass Avenue 1 Commander Argonne, Illinois 60440 U.S. Army Materials and Mechanics Research Center 1 Brookhaven National Laboratory ATTN: AMXMR-ATL National Neutron Cross Sec Ctr Watertown, Massachusetts ATTN: Dr. Murray Goldberg 02172 P. 0. Box 150 Upton, Long Island, New York 1 Commander 11973 U.S. Army Natick Laboratories ATTN: AMXRE, Dr. D. Sieling Natick, Massachusetts 01762

DISTRIBUTION LIST

No. of Copies Organization 3 Director Los Alamos Scientific Lab ATTN: Dr. Philip Young Dr. Donald Harris Dr. Leona Stewart P. 0. Box 1663 Los Alamos, New Mexico 87544 2 Gulf Energy & Environmental Systems Inc. ATTN: Mgr, Tech Info Svcs for Dr. Martin Fricke Mr. Charles Preskitt P. 0. Box 1111 San Diego, California 92112 2 Union Carbide Corporation Nuclear Division Oak Ridge National Laboratory ATTN: Dr. Francis Perey Mr. C. E. Clifford P. O. Box X

Oak Ridge, Tennessee 37830

No. of Copies

- 1 Ohio University ATTN: Dr. R. O. Lane Dept of Physics Athens, Ohio 45701
- 1 University of California Lawrence Livermore Laboratory ATTN: Technical Info Division P. O. Box 808 Livermore, California 94550

Organization

Aberdeen Proving Ground

Ch, Tech Lib Marine Corps Ln Ofc CDC Ln Ofc Dir, USAMSAA ATTN: Dr. Sperrazza

<u> llnclassified </u>							
DOCUMENT CONTROL DATA - R & D							
1. ORIGINATING ACTIVITY (Corporate author)		20. REPORT SE	ECURITY CLASSIFICATION				
		NA					
US Army Ballistic Research Laboratories		25. GROUP					
Aberdeen Proving Ground, Md. 21005							
3. REPORT TITLE		L					
CROSS SECTIONS FOR FORWARD-ANGLE FLASTIC	SCATTERING OF	7 TO 10 M	OV NEUTRONS				
FROM CARBON NITROGEN AND OXYGEN	SUMPLYING OF						
The shaden in the shaden in the shaden							
	.						
Sestime five notes (Type of report and inclusive dates)							
5. AUTHOR(5) (First name, middle initial, last name)							
W. P. Bucher, C. E. Hollandsworth, A. Ni	iler, D. McNat	t, J. E. Y	oungblood				
6 REPORT DATE	74. TOTAL NO. O	PAGES	75. NO. OF REFS				
JUNE 1973	27		17				
BA. CONTRACT OR GRANT NO.	98. ORIGINATOR	REPORT NUM	BER(\$)				
6. PROJECT NO. DNA Subtask W99QAXPC101	BRL Rep	ort No. 16	552				
RDT&E Proj. No. 1W062117AD52	-						
c	95. OTHER REPOR	RT NO(S) (Any o	ther numbers that may be aseigned				
	this report)						
d.							
10. DISTRIBUTION STATEMENT							
Annavad for multip release, distribution	limiaad						
Approved for public release; distribution	n unlimited.						
11. SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES	12. SPONSORING	ILITARY ACTI	VITY				
	Defense N	uclear Age	ency and				
	US Army M	ateriel Čo	ommand				
	Washingto	n, DC					
13. ABSTRACT							
Absolute differential cross sections for	the elastic s	cattering	of 7.40, 7.55, 8.00,				
8.55, 9.00, and 9.50 MeV neutrons from ca	arbon, nitroge	n, and oxy	gen in the angular				
range from 2.5° to 15° have been determin	ned. Measurem	ents were	made relative to the				
scattering from lead by use of a special.	-pu r pose colli	mator. Th	e cross section scale				
was then established by absolute measurem	ments for lead	in a ring	geometry experiment.				
The results for nitrogen are consistent w	with recent me	asurements	at other laboratories				
which suggest that the discrepancy in pre-	vious nitroge	n cross se	ction data around				
7-8 MeV neutron energy arose from an unde	erestimate of	the elasti	c scattering cross				
section. The data presented in this repo	ort represent	the first	direct measurements				
of neutron scattering cross sections for	light element	s at verv	small scattering angles				
	Bue oromone	s ac very	Small Scattering angles				

1

٠

1

٢

Sector Sector Sector

linclassified Security Classification

KEY WORDS		LIN	LINK A		LINK B		LINK C	
		ROLE	WT	ROLE	WT	ROLE	WΤ	
Neutron scatterin cross sections	8	ristoja. Del	, ;∋ π.36 ¦,:::-,.≥∙	r att pi ar g ð r	dai Els niver	∰ vale. Horeits		
smalltangles Volt Carbon Nitrogen Oxygen	BLOG TO BE TRATICITATE DEBUG		- 137-0 - 1377 - 1	91 997 173993 1	1979 (1971 - J. S.	1777 1777 1777	₹	
 (a) (a) (b) (a) 		leitre, r	ile tra (S e	1.1.) ¹⁹⁵ . 1 99. (904. 1	-	
· .	<i>P</i>						ate '	
	•61 700601 (D.C	10 I ^m 12 17 1 I	e te M Netic f	vel – 140 Vel – 140	стр	н н 		
	a an							

Sectored to get but Schools permitte (n. 1996), dit veren (n. 199 At 1 House to end

iffer statement consists and the instancement of 1.50 (1.5) in a and (1.0) (V) whereas and our attraces we sugger in the ansates (1.1) (1) (avelies instance). Measure as summarized to the . . T A. Andrews 1001 - 1000 - 1000 the goithe second a track of a compact since a to be and Signal Series Selment Barres the farove out coop gain in at Look to return memores costil defined code that the cost the is cousts for itro-or and consists recent is recent resummers at other second siden such that the direct a mile smoothers efforced cross section into cross a client the ata primatic is clic as and represent to first direct a above the street sectors in the and non-additional and the second second second second and the second second second second second second second

		()		
	}			
	ĺ			
				l í .
			1	l l
1911 - 1011 - 1011 - 101				

*